
CITY OF NORTH OAKS

Regular Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, September 24, 2020

7 PM, Via Teleconference or Other Electronic Means Only
MEETING AGENDA

Remote Access:   - Planning Commission members will participate by telephone or other electronic means
pursuant to Minn. Stat. §13D.021. Any person wishing to monitor the meeting electronically from a
remote location may do so by calling the following Zoom meeting videoconference number:
1-312-626-6799, Meeting ID: 829 7828 9659 or by joining the meeting via the following link:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82978289659?pwd=RGhXTjh6b1pQanE0Z3NGV3dSd0RQUT09, Passcode:
724124.  Individuals wishing to monitor the meeting remotely may do so in real time by watching the
livestream of the meeting on North Oaks Channel 16 and on the City’s website. Due to the existing
COVID-19 Health Pandemic, no more than five (5) members of the public may be in Council Chambers
(Community Room, 100 Village Center Drive,  MN) during the meeting. Once room capacity is met,
anyone wishing to attend the meeting above the five (5) members of the public who may be present in
the room during the meeting will be required to monitor the meeting remotely.

1. Call To Order

2. Oath of Office:  Grover Sayer III

3. Roll Call 

4. Pledge

5. Approval of Agenda

6. Citizen Comments  - Individuals may address the Planning Commission about any item not included on
the agenda. Speakers are requested to come to the podium, state name and address for the clerk 's
record, and limit their remarks to three minutes. During the pandemic, when meetings are held
virtually, speakers will be able to call in to the meetings to make remarks, or request that submitted
comments are read by a member of Commission or the City Staff. Generally, the Commission will not
take official action on items discussed during the citizen comment period, but Commissioners may refer
the matter to City Staff for a future report or direct that the matter be scheduled on an upcoming
agenda.

7. Approval of Previous Month's Minutes
7a. Approval of Minutes of July 30, 2020 Planning Commission Meeting

1



Planning Commission September 24, 2020

2

7.30.2020 Planning  Commission Minutes.docx

8. Business Action Items
8a.Consider Resolution Determining Completeness for Gate Hill Development and Setting Public Hearing

Gate Hill Report and Exhibits (A-B13).pdf

Revised Gate Hill Resolution Final 9-18-20.pdf

8b.Consider Resolution Determining Completeness for Red Forest Way Development and Setting Public Hearing
North Oaks - Red Forest Way South Report and Exhibits (A-B13).pdf

Revised Red Forest Way Resolution Final 9-18-2020.pdf

8c.Consider Resolution Changing/Setting meeting dates for October-December
Final PC Meeting Resolution 9-18-2020.pdf

9. Commissioner Report(s)

10. Adjourn  - The next meeting of the Planning Commission is Thursday, October 29, 2020.

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/696994/7.30.2020_Planning__Commission_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/696946/Gate_Hill_Report_and_Exhibits__A-B13_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/697784/Revised_Gate_Hill_Resolution_Final_9-18-20.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/696949/North_Oaks_-_Red_Forest_Way_South_Report_and_Exhibits__A-B13_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/697785/Revised_Red_Forest_Way_Resolution_Final_9-18-2020.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/697788/Final_PC_Meeting_Resolution_9-18-2020.pdf


North Oaks Planning Commission
Meeting Minutes

City of North Oaks Community Meeting Room
July 30, 2020

CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Azman called the meeting of July 30, 2020, to order at 7:00 p.m.

Pursuant to Minnesota Statute 13D.021, the meeting was conducted via Zoom, with Chair 
Azman and Administrator Kress present in the Council Chambers.

ROLL CALL
Present: Chair Mark Azman, Commissioners David Cremons, Stig Hauge, Sara Shah, Joyce 
Yoshimura-Rank and City Council Liaison Rick Kingston. 
Absent: Commissioners Jim Hara and Nick Sandell.
Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, City Septic Inspector Brian Humpal.
Others Present: Videographer Maureen Anderson.
A quorum was declared present. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chair Azman led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
MOTION by Yoshimura-Rank, seconded by Shah, to approve the agenda as submitted. 
Motion carried unanimously by roll call.

CITIZEN COMMENTS
None.

Chair Azman congratulated Commissioner Shah on her appointment to the City Council, said she 
would make a wonderful contribution to the Council and he wanted to wish her well, noting that 
Commissioner Shah would certainly be missed on the Planning Commission.  Commissioner 
Shah confirmed that this would be her last Planning Commission meeting as she would soon be 
sworn in at the next Council meeting.  She also said thank you to her fellow Commissioners and 
Staff as the last two years have been very informative and she can say with confidence that each 
of them has demonstrated their commitment and tenacity for the community and it was an honor 
to serve with them.  

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MONTH’S MINUTES
6a. Approval of the May 28, 2020 Planning Commission Minutes

6b. Approval of the June 9, 2020 Planning Commission Special Meeting Minutes
 Commissioner Shah noticed on page 46 of the Minutes some of the verbiage is highlighted in 

yellow, which is a portion when the attorney is speaking, and asked why that is and if any 
action was needed.  

3



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting July 30, 2020

Page | 2

 Administrator Kress said when the Minutes come in highlighted, it’s a section they wanted 
Staff to look at.  He said there were sets of Minutes that were titled differently but are 
actually the same.  He noted what they’re seeing is the draft version before the final and said 
they need to ignore the ones with the yellow highlighting.  

MOTION by Yoshimura-Rank, seconded by Hauge, to approve the Minutes of the May 28, 
2020 Planning Commission Meeting and the June 9, 2020 Planning Commission Special 
Meeting. Motion carried unanimously by roll call.

BUSINESS ACTION ITEMS
Chair Azman noted under the North Oaks ordinances, they do not need to have a public hearing 
for variances, although that’s not uncommon in other cities, noting they would proceed without a 
public hearing and would address the variances as normal business items.  

7a. Review Septic Variance #20-07 for 31 South Long Lake Trail 
 Chair Azman said they would have a presentation from City Septic Inspector Brian Humpal

on the first variance request.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said the Applicant is requesting a variance to install a subsurface 
sewage treatment system (SSTS) which would encroach 15 feet into the required 30 foot 
Southwest property line setback, 10 feet into the required 30 foot Northwest property line 
setback and 15 feet into the required 30 foot Southeast property line setback.  The current 
system has been classified as non-compliant under current Minnesota Pollution Control 
Agency (MPCA) rules due to the cesspools.  Based on these facts, it is the Staff’s opinion 
that the Applicant has met the requirements for the variance as outlined in Section 151.078 of 
the Code.  He noted they are in agreement with the designer, Mr. Steve Schirmers, that the 
proposed location of the new system appears to be the most viable location for an SSTS.  
This would be the minimum variance which would alleviate the practical difficulties.  He 
said they are asking that the Planning Commission make a recommendation to the City 
Council to approve or deny Variance #20-07 to encroach 15 feet into the required 30 foot 
South property line setback, 10 feet into the required 30 foot North property line setback, and 
15 feet into the required 30 foot East property line setback. 

 Administrator Kress said if any of the attendees were here for this portion of the meeting, 
they could “raise their hand” on the Zoom platform and the Commission would address 
them.

 Commissioner Shah asked if the neighbors were notified.

 Administrator Kress said letters were sent with the traditional variance application and all the 
neighboring properties received letters. He said they didn’t receive any feedback, emails or 
phone calls.

4



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting July 30, 2020

Page | 3

 Administrator Kress noted a hand up on the Zoom platform and asked the attendee to state 
their name and address.

 Mr. Royce Pavelka introduced himself and stated his address is 31 South Long Lake Trail.

 Chair Azman welcomed Mr. Pavelka and asked if he had any additional comments or insight 
for the Commission that he would like them to consider as part of the application.

 Mr. Pavelka said not specifically, he was attending to see how the application went through 
and to see what the resolution would be.  

 Chair Azman asked if Mr. Pavelka heard Septic Inspector Humpal’s presentation on the 
septic.

 Mr. Pavelka said yes he did.  

 Chair Azman asked if Mr. Pavelka was in agreement with the proposed system and 
recommendation.

 Mr. Pavelka answered yes.

 Chair Azman noted Mr. Pavelka had an engineer come out and do a study and asked if this 
seemed to be the best way to go forward.

 Mr. Pavelka said yes, they went through a few different designs before the final design was 
agreed upon which would make sense for how the lot is laid out.  He said many of the things 
he didn’t fully understand regarding how septic systems are designed.

 Chair Azman asked if Mr. Pavelka is a new resident of the City.

 Mr. Pavelka said yes, they purchased their home about a month ago.

 Administrator Kress asked to clarify the process and noted tonight the Planning Commission 
recommends up to the City Council approval, then the City would take action on the variance 
on August 13, 2020.  After that has taken place, if the Council approves, then they will be 
able to move ahead with the installation.

 Commissioner Cremons asked a question for Septic Inspector Humpal and Administrator 
Kress, noting that the system looks fairly complex and obviously a lot of effort was put into 
the design, and asked what the process is for the City in monitoring the installation and 
making sure that the required follow-up maintenance is actually done, whether it is this 
system or any other new systems.  

5



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting July 30, 2020

Page | 4

 Septic Inspector Humpal said as far as construction, they are doing construction inspection at 
particular stages of the construction to be sure that everything happens properly.  Upon 
completion, it is the owner’s responsibility to maintain and have a contract with a system 
operator to maintain that system.  The owner is then required to report that monitoring and 
operation with the City in conjunction with how the management plan for that system has 
been prepared.  

 Commissioner Cremons asked if the owner makes an annual submittal.

 Septic Inspector Humpal answered yes, that is typically what happens and the service 
provider will annually submit documentation reflecting the monitoring of the system. 

MOTION by Hauge, seconded by Cremons, to approve Variance #20-07 for 31 South Long 
Lake Trail, recommended for approval with the following conditions: 1) Completion date 
of 120 days after approval 2) System to be located per the design dated June 5, 2020 by 
Steve Schirmers.  Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 

 Chair Azman told Mr. Pavelka that the Commission recommends through this motion that 
the City Council approve the application and the application would be addressed at the next 
City Council Meeting, typically on the Consent Agenda.

 Mr. Kress said yes it is typically on the Consent Agenda and Council has the option to 
approve it as part of the Consent Agenda or move it for additional information and 
discussion.  

7b. Review Septic Variance Application #20-06 for 33 Eagle Ridge Road
 Septic Inspector Humpal said the Applicant is requesting a variance to install a subsurface 

sewage treatment system which would encroach 20 feet into the required 30 foot South 
property line setback, and 15 feet into the 30 foot Eagle Ridge Road right-of-way.  The 
current system has been classified as non-compliant under MPCA Rule 7080.1500 
Subparagraph 4E due to a lack of required 3 foot separation between the bottom of the drain 
field and the limiting soil conditions.  He noted at the current time, it is the Staff’s opinion 
that there may be adequate area in which to install a replacement SSTS on the property, 
which would not extend into the road right-of-way.  He said this may require the installation 
of a Type 4 system and may require additional variances to accomplish this.  Based on these 
facts, it is the Staff’s opinion that the Applicant has not met the requirements for a Variance 
as outlined in Section 151.078 of the Code, since this would not be the minimum variance 
which would alleviate the hardship.  He said Staff is asking the Planning Commission to 
make a recommendation to the City Council to approve or deny Variance #20-06 to install a 
subsurface sewage treatment system in the right-of-way. 

6



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting July 30, 2020

Page | 5

 Commissioner Hauge asked Septic Inspector Humpal what type of septic system the 
Applicant is proposing, noting there are a lot of documents which suggested to him that it 
would be a Type 4, but that may not be correct.  

 Septic Inspector Humpal said it is a Type 4 System, and he hasn’t seen anything to 
demonstrate that they cannot install a Type 4 System that would actually be on the property. 

 Commissioner Hauge asked if the Applicant was available and could explain the uncertainty.

 Commissioner Shah said to Commissioner Hauge’s point, the Staff memo in the packet 
definitely says it’s being replaced with a Type 3 System, so it sounds like it is inaccurate 
information.  

 Commissioner Cremons asked Septic Inspector Humpal, along with building into the right-
of-way of the road which he assumes is quite unusual versus building into a setback or 
variance, it also talks about a substantial variance into the setback along the border of the 
neighboring property.  He asked if they go with this alternative system Staff recommends, 
would that setback change or will it still be right up against the neighbor’s property.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said in his opinion, there has been no design that he has seen for a 
system that is on their property.  His assumption would be that they would have significant 
variance requests no matter what they were to do.

 Commissioner Cremons asked if it was because there was such a limited area available.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said correct.

 Commissioner Shah asked to talk about the variance a bit more.  She said it is rare to see a 
variance go into the easement and asked if that has ever happened before with a septic 
variance and if there is a precedent.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said he is not aware of a variance ever being approved.  He did 
recall before his time hearing about a variance request that perhaps spilled into the right-of-
way or into City land.  His understanding is that the variance was denied.  He has not 
reviewed the file, so he was unable to confirm one way or the other.  

 Commissioner Hauge said the City sees a lot of locations of the septic system and asked if 
Septic Inspector Humpal had a drawing of the proposed location so the Commission can 
understand better what it would look like.  

 Septic Inspector Humpal shared his screen to show a map of the property and pointed out the 
location of the house and driveway extending East off of the house.  He said South of the 
driveway they would notice the proposed mound system which, as requested in that location,
is encroaching into the road easement.  Septic Inspector Humpal said if you visit the property 

7



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting July 30, 2020

Page | 6

it is somewhat deceiving, as Eagle Ridge Road is positioned at the far Eastern side of the 
easement and it can be deceiving where property lines are located.  

 Commissioner Hauge said, in representing the City, where does Septic Inspector Humpal
propose to have the system located on the map.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said the two options he would perhaps consider are: they could 
rework where the existing drain field is, as he has seen a number of situations where people 
have excavated and removed that existing drain field and rebuilt that area and that could be a 
possibility.  He also said he didn’t think it would be out of line to ask the Applicant to 
relocate the well, as there would be an area North of the driveway and East of the house in 
the vicinity of the existing well.  He noted it looks like that is a significantly higher elevation 
and there may be more suitable soil conditions in that location.

 Commissioner Hauge asked if these options had been discussed with the Applicant.
  
 Septic Inspector Humpal said he has not had any contact with the Applicant, but he has had 

some discussions with the system designer and he expressed his concerns for going into the 
right-of-way.  The designer insisted that the owner wanted to proceed anyway.

 Commissioner Hauge said he had several questions for the Applicant, one of them would be
to ask if this is very inconvenient for their existing yard, or what is the reason for the 
presented solution.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said they do not know, but regardless it is a very challenging site.  
He said he understands the proposal to explore other options as they’ve been presented with 
one option without seeing any other options presented.

 Commissioner Yoshimura-Rank asked how difficult it is to remove an existing drain field 
and put another one in the same location.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said some of it is site-specific, typically it’s not extremely difficult
but there are so many variables it is hard to give a good answer for that.

 Commissioner Yoshimura-Rank asked if Septic Inspector Humpal thought it could be a 
viable option.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said it could be, noting he hasn’t seen anyone demonstrate that it is 
not an option.

 Commissioner Cremons said as a matter of principle, unless there is no solution workable 
other than using City property, it would be his strong preference not to have City property 
used for private drain fields.  He said he would deny the application as it is presented and he 
thinks it’s a bad precedent.

8



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting July 30, 2020

Page | 7

 Commissioner Shah agreed with Commissioner Cremons and said once they get into this, 
there will be other people who will start seeking a variance of this sort.  She asked if, based 
on the memo written, they were sure that the Applicant is replacing with a Type 3 or Type 4 
System. 

 Septic Inspector Humpal said, looking at the design right now, they are specifying it as a 
Type 4 System.

 Commissioner Shah asked if they could table this and try to get the Applicant back to correct 
the memo, noting they have the choice to deny or approve it as well.  

 Commissioner Hauge said he was thinking the same as Commissioner Shah and noted if they 
table it, it’s kind of a denial, so it doesn’t really matter whether they table it or deny it.  He 
said obviously they do not have the information they would like to have at this meeting.

 Chair Azman asked what the 60-day rule is here.

 Administrator Kress said even though the Planning Commission might recommend denial to 
the City Council, if the Applicant were to provide different information at the City Council, it 
is possibly that they may entertain it and send it back down to the Planning Commission for a 
second review.  Otherwise the Council would deny it as well.  

 Commissioner Hauge said in the interest of time, he agrees that perhaps to table the 
discussion until the next meeting is the right thing to do, noting that there are questions to be 
answered and they should be questioned if they’re interested in proceeding.  

 Administrator Kress said the only options the Commission has are to deny the application or 
table it to a date-certain, or a specific date. 

 Chair Azman asked if there is a 60-day Rule issue they need to deal with, and if they table it 
to the next meeting and then the following City Council meeting, he’s not sure of where 
they’d be sitting regarding the timing.

 Administrator Kress said he doesn’t have the Ordinance in front of him, but it does sound 
like it falls in line with the Ordinance.  Based on the information they have and that they’ve 
notified the Applicant that they would review it tonight, his recommendation would be that 
they deny it based on the Staff’s perspective.

 Chair Azman asked Septic Inspector Humpal, if they decide to go that route and provide 
some guidance to the Applicant, what would Septic Inspector Humpal be looking for in order
to justify that this seems to be the only option for this particular Applicant.  He asked if 
Septic Inspector Humpal would want to see different plans and drawings.

9



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting July 30, 2020

Page | 8

 Septic Inspector Humpal said he’d like to see some other plans, or at least an attempt at other 
plans, and some exploration of the site and documentation from a licensed designer 
indicating that something is or is not possible or what the limitations are for some of the 
other areas on the property.

 Chair Azman asked Septic Inspector Humpal if shifting the proposed absorption area towards 
the house might be workable.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said he doesn’t know if that would be possible given the contours, 
noting that systems must be installed lengthwise across the contours and it looks like on the 
contour map that the contours begin to shift and may not be possible.  He stated without 
being on the site with measuring equipment it’s difficult to say, it might be possible to take 
the existing system as designed, shift it towards the house and rotate it slightly.  He said they 
may lose a portion of the turnaround in the driveway but that may be possible.  He noted that 
on paper it looks great but the actual site conditions are probably a bit different than they can 
see on the plan they have in front of them. 

 Chair Azman asked Septic Inspector Humpal if one of his comments was that the Applicant
may not even need a system because the drain field itself could be reworked.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said that would be completely removing the old system, bringing in 
new soil, doing soil corrections, so that would be a new system.

 Chair Azman asked if they would need new tanks in that situation.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said yes, they would need new tanks.

 Chair Azman asked if that is something Septic Inspector Humpal would like to see in order to 
avoid a variance, if it could be done through a study.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said yes, it would be great to see if that is a feasible option, noting 
that it is rare for the City to ask someone to replace or move their well, but that would be 
another option. 

 Chair Azman asked what the history has been in the City of North Oaks for asking people to 
move a well, noting that gets expensive.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said he doesn’t recall a situation where they’ve asked anyone to 
replace or move a well.  He said there are some communities outside of North Oaks where in 
order to install a septic system, the Applicant must install a new well themselves and usually 
also have to buy a well for one or two of their neighbors.  

10



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting July 30, 2020

Page | 9

 Commissioner Cremons asked wouldn’t they really be saying to the Applicant: come back to 
the Planning Commission with a plan or series of options that does not involve encroaching 
into the right-of-way and they will look at those plans, but the Commission is not prepared to 
approve this plan.  He noted that would leave it up to the Applicant to come up with an 
alternative, whether it’s using the existing drain field or moving it closer to the house or 
doing something else, but that would be up to them.  The Planning Commission would just 
be telling the Applicant they are not prepared to give them part of the street for their drain 
field.  

 Commissioner Shah agreed that there needs to be some demonstrated evidence as to why 
they cannot go with alternative options.  

 Commissioner Hauge said he agrees and that it moves in the direction of denial with the 
following findings being that the information isn’t complete and the Applicant needs to come 
back with alternatives that do not use City property.  

 Administrator Kress said if they want to get specific with findings, he would show the 
criteria for a variance approval, and he shared his screen to note the practical difficulties and 
the criteria for a variance.

 Chair Azman said what strikes him is the uniqueness factor and a unique situation.  He noted 
that in a uniqueness situation, the problem is due to circumstances unique to the property and 
not caused by the landowner.  He said from what he’s hearing, it doesn’t seem that the 
Commission is convinced that there is a uniqueness situation.  The other two factors he looks 
at are reasonableness and essential character.  He said certainly it’s reasonable to want to 
have a septic and he doesn’t see any deviations from the essential character of the property.

 Commissioner Cremons noted on the screen Point E, whether this is the minimum variance 
to alleviate the practical difficulties.  He said the Commission is saying they’re prepared to 
give certain variances but what the Applicant is asking is more than the Commission is 
prepared to give in terms of the scope of all the variances.  He thinks that Point E is the most 
directly relevant.

 Chair Azman said he thinks that plays as part as well and they’ve talked about this quite a bit 
and it appears there are some factors they’ve identified on the record and he wondered if this 
was perhaps time for a motion on this particular application.

MOTION by Cremons, seconded by Yoshimura-Rank, to deny Variance #20-06 for 33 
Eagle Ridge Road with the following findings 1) the Commission is unwilling to consent to 
construction of the drain field within the public right-of-way and are asking for 
alternatives with a lesser need for a variance 2) the Commission needs clarification 
concerning the design of the system as there is inconsistency in the materials submitted.  
Motion for denial carried unanimously by roll-call.

11



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting July 30, 2020

Page | 10

 Chair Azman then stated for the Applicant, this will go before the City Council at the August 
13, 2020 meeting.

7c. Review Septic Variance Application #20-08 for 2 Island Road
 Septic Inspector Humpal stated the Applicant is requesting a variance to install a subsurface 

sewage treatment system which would encroach 15 feet into the required 30 foot West 
property line setback, and 15 feet into the required Southwest property line setback.  The 
current system has been classified as non-compliant under MPCA Rule 7080.1500 
Subparagraph 4D which would require a 3 foot separation between the bottom of the drain 
field and the limiting soil conditions.  Based on these facts, it is the Staff’s opinion the 
Applicant has met the requirements for variances outlined in Section 151.078 of the Code.  
The Staff is in agreement with the designer, Mr. Jesse Kloeppner, that the proposed location 
of the new system appears to be the most viable location for an SSTS.  This would be the 
minimum variance which would alleviate the practical difficulties.  They are requesting that 
the Planning Commission make a recommendation to the City Council to approve or deny 
Variance #20-08 to encroach 15 feet into the required 30 foot West property line setback and 
15 feet into the required Southwest property line setback.  

 Administrator Kress noted a hand up on the Zoom platform and invited Mr. Ilya Berchenko 
to join the meeting.

 Chair Azman asked Mr. Berchenko if he had any desire to add to what Septic Inspector 
Humpal said or any comments regarding what is going on at the property.

 Mr. Berchenko said no, he thinks this application is very similar to the first variance 
(Variance #20-07 for 31 South Long Lake Trail) and noted they looked at 3-4 different 
designs and as Septic Inspector Humpal said, they went through different designers and the 
one presented seems to be the most viable.  Mr. Berchenko said similar to the previous 
variance, they will be rebuilding on top of the old septic system, and yes, it’s probably more 
expensive but it’s the right thing to do.  

 Commissioner Yoshimura-Rank asked Mr. Berchenko if when he says they’re building on 
top of the old system, they are actually removing the old system.

 Mr. Berchenko said yes, they are removing the old system and using the same location for 
the new system. 

 Commissioner Hauge asked Septic Inspector Humpal how difficult it is to remove an existing 
drain field.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said as he indicated in the previous variance (Variance #20-06), it is 
somewhat site-specific.  Generally speaking, it is not terribly difficult to remove an existing 
drain field, noting that it is not as desirable as having new, undisturbed soils, since the 

12



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting July 30, 2020

Page | 11

removal of that existing system can further damage soils which will impact how that accepts 
wastewater.  He again noted the most desirable option is to have undisturbed soils.  

 Commissioner Yoshimura-Rank asked said down the road as they see second generation 
septic systems being put in, at some point they will fail again, maybe it’s 30, 40 or 50 years 
from now.  She said these people are asking for variances now so that you know there will be 
variances of these properties again.  At that point in the future, she asked Septic Inspector 
Humpal if he sees it being a requirement that people do remove their existing septic system 
because there may be no other option since they used up a variance option this time around.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said yes, that would be the next logical solution, but he doesn’t 
have an answer on how many times one can remove a septic system and rebuild that area, 
noting once again that is a situation specific to each individual site.  He said as time has 
shown, there have been many new technologies when it comes to on-site wastewater 
treatment, which is the reason they are seeing more of these Type 4 Systems, as they are 
another tool to deal with poor site conditions or limited area. 

 Commissioner Yoshimura-Rank said this property has shoreline and asked what the required
distance is from the shoreline to the drain field or to any part of the septic system.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said it is specific to Pleasant Lake and it would be 75 feet.  

 Commissioner Cremons asked to look at Page 1 of the variance request and said he thinks 
something may have been left out, noting when he looked at it earlier he thought the 
Southwest property line setback wasn’t mentioned in the approval, it just dealt with the West 
property line.  

 Septic Inspector Humpal said Commissioner Cremons was correct, in the action requested it 
looked like that was clipped out.

 Commissioner Cremons asked to see that be put back in so they give the Applicant what they 
need, saying it would be action requested to put in the Southwest property line setback along 
with the West property line setback.  He noted it would read: Planning Commission 
recommends to the City Council to approve or deny Variance #20-08 to encroach 15 feet into 
the required 30 foot West property line setback, and encroach 15 feet into the required 30 
foot Southwest property line setback.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said that is correct.
MOTION by Hauge, seconded by Yoshimura-Rank, to approve Variance #20-08 for 2 
Island Road with the following conditions: 1) Completion date 120 days after approval and 
2) System to be located per the design dated September 29, 2019 by Jesse Kloeppner.  
Motion carried unanimously by roll-call.

13



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting July 30, 2020

Page | 12

 Chair Azman stated for the Applicant, the recommendation is to approve the variance request 
and it will be sent to the City Council for review and action, most likely on the Consent 
Agenda at August 13, 2020 City Council Meeting.

 Mr. Berchenko thanked the Planning Commission for their approval and noted that in the 
letter he was sent, it said that the City Council will meet on August 6, 2020.

 Administrator Kress said it was a typo on their end and the City Council will actually meet 
on August 13, 2020.

7d.Review Septic Variance Application #20-09 for 4 Buffalo Road
 Septic Inspector Humpal said the Applicant is requesting a variance to install a subsurface 

sewage treatment system which would encroach 4 feet into the required 30-foot South 
property line setback.  The current system has been classified as non-compliant under MPCA 
rule 7080.1500 Subparagraph 4D due to the lack of required 3 foot separation between the 
bottom of the drain field and the limiting soil conditions. Based on these facts, it is the Staff’s 
opinion that the Applicant has met the requirements for variances outlined in Section 151.078 
of the Code.  They are in agreement with the designer, Jesse Kloeppner, that the proposed 
location of the new system appears to be the most viable location for an SSTS.  This would 
be the minimum variance which would alleviate the practical difficulties.  At that point, 
Septic Inspector Humpal made a correction, saying it should read “South property line 
setback”, as it currently read “Southeast property line setback”.  He continued on, saying, 
they are requesting the Planning Commission make a recommendation to the City Council to
approve or deny Variance #20-09 to encroach 4 feet into the required 30 foot South property 
line setback. 

 Commissioner Hauge asked Septic Inspector Humpal, it doesn’t look like there are any other 
options in this case.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said no, there really are no other practical options.

 Chair Azman asked Septic Inspector Humpal what kind of system is proposed.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said it would be a Type 3 mound system.

 Chair Azman asked if the requested variance was only 4 feet.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said yes, it was 4 feet and would still be 26 feet from the property 
line.

 Commissioner Yoshimura-Rank noted it abuts the golf course and asked if that was accurate.
 Septic Inspector Humpal said he believes that is the case.

 Chair Azman said he doesn’t know if it matters, but on the property parcel report, it looks 
like the bank owns the property. 

14



Minutes of the Planning Commission Meeting July 30, 2020

Page | 13

 Commissioner Cremons noted the property was sold in March of 2020 and the Applicants are 
the new owners.

MOTION by Shah, seconded by Yoshimura-Rank, to approve Variance #20-09 for 4 
Buffalo Road with the following conditions: 1) Completion date 120 days after approval 
and 2) System to be located per the design dated April 9, 2019 by Jesse Kloeppner.  Motion 
carried unanimously by roll-call.

 Chair Azman stated for the Applicant, the Planning Commission has approved the 
application for recommendation to the City Council, and the Council at the next meeting on 
August 13, 2020 will consider final action, most likely on the Consent Agenda.  

 Commissioner Yoshimura-Rank asked Septic Inspector Humpal the same question regarding 
septic systems that she had asked his predecessor, what does Septic Inspector Humpal see 
happening in North Oaks as they come through a third generation of septic systems.  Does he 
ever think the City will need to go to City water and City sewer.

 Septic Inspector Humpal said these sites will be more challenging and more expensive.  As 
far as running municipal sewer through North Oaks, there may be areas it is viable, but in his 
opinion, given the topography of North Oaks, municipal services would be very challenging.  
He said he thinks they’d continue to have variances and Type 4 systems and struggle with 
some of the sites.  Unfortunately, he doesn’t see a better option at this point. 

COMMISSIONER REPORTS
None.

Commissioner Cremons told Commissioner Shah it’s been a pleasure working with her and he 
wishes her luck.  Commissioner Yoshimura-Rank echoed that saying good luck.  Commissioner 
Hauge said congratulations and good luck. 

Commissioner Shah thanked the Commissioners, said she appreciated it and said she wouldn’t be 
a stranger as they’d know where to find her.  

ADJOURN
MOTION by Yoshimura-Rank, seconded by Shah, to adjourn the Planning Commission 
meeting at 7:59 p.m. Motion carried unanimously by roll call.

____________________________ _____________________________
Kevin Kress, City Administrator Mark Azman, Chair 

Date approved____________

15



   
  N O R T H W E S T  A S S O C I A T E D  C O N S U L T A N T S ,  I N C .  
                      __________________________________________________________________ 

  4 150  O l so n  Me mo r ia l  H ighw ay ,   S t e .  320 ,   Go lde n  V a l le y ,  MN   554 22  

T e le p ho ne :  7 6 3 .9 5 7 . 1 1 0 0                 W e b s i t e :  w w w . na c p l a nn i n g . c o m  

 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
 
FROM:  Bob Kirmis, City Planner 
  Larina DeWalt, City Engineer 
  Bridget Nason, City Attorney 
 
DATE:  September 24, 2020 
 
RE:  North Oaks - East Oaks Planned Unit Development 
  Gate Hill Preliminary Plan - Determination of Completeness 
 
FILE NO:  321.02 - 20.05 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The North Oaks Company, LLC has requested Preliminary Plan approval of a low-
density residential subdivision upon the “Gate Hill” parcel located just north of County 
Road H2 on the east side of Centerville Road. 
 
The subject 32-acre property is identified as “Site G” in the East Oaks Planned 
Development Agreement (PDA).  The submitted Preliminary Plan (subdivision) calls for 
the creation of 73 dwelling units upon the site.  Such units are comprised of 33 
detached townhomes and 40 twin homes (in 20 buildings). 
 
The proposed development area is bound by an agricultural conservation easement to 
the south and west and open space to the north.  The east boundary of the site is 
Centerville Road. 
 
According to the PDA, the City’s RCM - PUD, Residential Commercial Mixed zoning 
district provisions apply to the subject property. 
 
All lots are proposed to be served by municipal sewer and water. 
 
Prior to the scheduling of a public hearing for the application, Section 152.021(C) of the 
North Oaks City Code (the “Subdivision Ordinance”) directs the Planning Commission to 
review the Preliminary Plan and accompanying submissions (the “Preliminary Plan 

16

http://www.nacplanning.com/


 

2 
 

application”) and decide whether the submission is complete and contains the 
information required for an application for Preliminary Plan approval found in the City of 
North Oaks’ (the City”) Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance and East Oaks PDA, 
as may be applicable. 
 
If the Planning Commission determines the Preliminary Plan application to be complete, 
it should call for a public hearing.  It is anticipated that the Planning Commission may 
schedule the public hearing at its regular October 29, 2020 meeting or a special 
meeting.  If, however, the Preliminary Plan application is deemed incomplete, the 
Planning Commission must advise the applicant what additional information is 
necessary such that it may be determined to be complete. 
 
To be noted is that a determination of completeness is not intended to consider design 
aspects of the subdivision (street and lot layouts, trail locations etc.).  Nor is a 
determination of completeness a determination of compliance or conformity with the 
terms of the PDA or its controls.  Such issues are intended to be addressed as part of 
the formal subdivision review which will follow. 
 
The Planning Commission should make its determination of completeness within 15 
business days from the date the application materials were received.  The Preliminary 
Plan application was received by the City on September 4, 2020.  Thus, the Planning 
Commission should make its determination no later than September 28, 2020 
 
Attached for reference: 
 
 Exhibit A:   Preliminary Subdivision (Plan) Submission Requirements 
 Exhibit B:   Application Materials: 
 
  B1:   Applicant Narrative 
  B2:   Project Summary 
  B3:   East Oaks Phasing Plan 
  B4:   Existing Conditions 
  B5:   Preliminary Plat / Easement Plan 
  B6:   Site Plan 
  B7:   Preliminary Grading Plans 
  B8:   Preliminary Utility Plans 
  B9:   Preliminary Landscape / Sign Plans 
  B10: Twin Home Design Samples 
  B11: Traffic Analysis  
  B12: Trail Easement Plan 
  B13: Validation of Wetland Delineation 
 
 
 

17



 

3 
 

STAFF COMMENTS REGARDING COMPLETENESS OF PRELIMINARY PLAN 
APPLICATION 
 
Information Requirements.  Attached as Exhibit A is a table which lists the various 
submission requirements for Preliminary Plan (subdivision) applications.  In 
consideration of the submitted application, it is important to note that submission 
requirements for Preliminary Plan applications are found in the following documents: 
 

1. The Subdivision Ordinance (Subdivision Regulations, City Code Chapter 152 - 
previously Ord. 93) 

 
2. The Zoning Ordinance (Zoning Code, Chapter 151 - previously Ord. 94) 

 
To be noted is that submission requirements referenced in the East Oaks PDA 
documents are a direct duplication of the submission requirements provided in the 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Also, to be noted is that some submission requirements apply to unsewered 
development projects.    In this regard, some of the listed submission requirements are 
not considered applicable to the Gate Hill subdivision and are noted as “Not 
Applicable/NA in Exhibit A. 
 
In review of the submission requirements listed in attached Exhibit A, all submission 
requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Application Action Deadline.  According to Minnesota Statutes, Section 462.358, 
Subd. 3b, a subdivision application “shall be preliminarily approved or disapproved 
within 120 days following delivery of an application completed in compliance with the 
municipal ordinance by the applicant to the municipality, unless an extension of the 
review period has been agreed to by the applicant. 
 
CONCLUSION / RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission is charged with the responsibility of determining whether the 
submitted Gate Hill Preliminary Plan (subdivision) application is complete. 
 
In review of the submitted application materials and the applicable submission 
requirements found in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances, Staff has determined 
that required information has been provided to the City, and that the Preliminary Plan 
application is complete. 
 
If the Planning Commission deems the application to be complete, it is appropriate for 
the Commission to call for a public hearing at which the application may be formally 
considered. 
 

18



 

4 
 

If, however, the Commission deems the application to be incomplete, it must advise the 
applicant of information which must be provided for it to be determined to be complete.   
 
cc: Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
 Mikeya Griffin, NOHOA Executive Director 
 Phil Belfiori, Vadnais Lake Area Water Management Organization 

Jack Gleason, Department of Natural Resources 
Mark Houge and Gary Eagles, North Oaks Company 

19



EXHIBIT A

20



EXHIBIT A

21



EXHIBIT A

22



EXHIBIT A

23



EXHIBIT B1

24



EXHIBIT B1

25



EXHIBIT B2

26



EXHIBIT B3 27



EXHIBIT B4

28



EXHIBIT B5

29



EXHIBIT B6

30



EXHIBIT B7

31



EXHIBIT B7

32



EXHIBIT B7

33



EXHIBIT B7

34



EXHIBIT B8

35



EXHIBIT B8

36



EXHIBIT B8

37



EXHIBIT B8

38



EXHIBIT B9

39



EXHIBIT B9

40



EXHIBIT B9

41



EXHIBIT B10

42



EXHIBIT B10

43



EXHIBIT B10

44



EXHIBIT B10

45



EXHIBIT B10

46



EXHIBIT B11

47



EXHIBIT B11

48



EXHIBIT B12

49



EXHIBIT B13

50



CITY OF NORTH OAKS PLANNING COMMISSION 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-04 

 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING PRELIMINARY PLAN APPLICATION FOR 

SUBDIVISION OF SITE G, GATE HILL, IS COMPLETE  

 

 

 WHEREAS, the North Oaks Company, LLC (Applicant) submitted an Application 

for Property Subdivision (Preliminary Plan Approval) including a cover letter/narrative as 

well as Sheets 1-6 and the Floor Area Worksheet on September 4, 2020 for subdivision of 

property identified as Site G, Gate Hill, per the East Oaks Planned Unit Development 

Agreement (PDA); and  

 

 WHEREAS, following a preliminary staff review, Applicant was advised by email 

on September 16, 2020, that certain required information necessary for an application for 

Preliminary Plan Approval to be deemed complete was not included with the September 

4th Materials, that as a result the application as submitted was determined by staff to be 

incomplete; and  

 

 WHEREAS, additional required information and documents were received by the 

City of North Oaks on Thursday, September 17, 2020; and 

 

 WHEREAS, North Oaks City Code Section 152.021, the Planning Commission 

shall determine whether the information required by Section 152.021 (A) is complete, and, 

if complete, shall set a date and place for a public hearing on the Preliminary Plan 

Application.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF NORTH OAKS: 

 

1. The Application for Property Subdivision (Preliminary Plan) of Site G, Gate Hill, 

submitted by the Applicant is hereby deemed COMPLETE as of September 17, 

2020, the date that all information and documents required for the Preliminary 

Application approval was received by the City.  

 

2. City Staff are hereby directed to advise the Applicant of this determination of 

completeness.  

 

3. The Planning Commission hereby sets a public hearing on the Preliminary Plan 

Application at ___ on __________ in the Community Room, 100 Village Center 

Drive, North Oaks, MN and via other electronic means pursuant to Minn. Stat. Sec. 

13D.021 due to the existing health pandemic and State of Minnesota and City of 

North Oaks declarations of emergency, and directs staff to provide notice of the 

public hearing as required by state statutes and the provisions of the North Oaks 

City Code.  

51



 2 

 

 

 

Adopted the 24th day of September 2020 by a vote of _____ to ______.     

  

 

 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Mark Azman 

      Its: Chair 

52



   
  N O R T H W E S T  A S S O C I A T E D  C O N S U L T A N T S ,  I N C .  
                      __________________________________________________________________ 

  4 150  O l so n  Me mo r ia l  H ighw ay ,   S t e .  320 ,   Go lde n  V a l le y ,  MN   554 22  

T e le p ho ne :  7 6 3 .9 5 7 . 1 1 0 0                 W e b s i t e :  w w w . na c p l a nn i n g . c o m  

 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
 
FROM:  Bob Kirmis, City Planner 
  Larina DeWalt, City Engineer 
  Bridget Nason, City Attorney 
 
DATE:  September 24, 2020 
 
RE:  North Oaks - East Oaks Planned Unit Development 
  Red Forest Way South Preliminary Subdivision - Determination of 

Completeness 
 
FILE NO:  321.02 - 20.06 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The North Oaks Company, LLC has requested preliminary subdivision approval of 
Phase I of a two-phase, single family residential subdivision entitled “Red Forest Way 
South.” The parcel, previously referred to as the “North Black Lake” parcel as part of 
previous concept plan review, is bound by Catbird lane on the west, Black Lake on the 
south and agricultural conservation land to the north and east. 
 
At this time, the applicant has requested preliminary plan approval of Phase 1 of the 
subdivision which consists of 17 lots located in the northwest area of the site.  A total of 
16 lots are conceptually illustrated within Phase 2, located in the southeast area of the 
site.  Combined, Phases 1 and 2 call for the creation of a total of 33 single family 
residential lots upon the subject site.  
 
Considering that Phase 2 is conceptual in this application, it is illustrated for reference 
only and will be subject to future review and preliminary plan processing by the Planning 
Commission and City Council. 
 
The subject property occupies the southern half of “Site K” in the East Oaks Planned 
Development Agreement (PDA). 
 

53

http://www.nacplanning.com/


 

2 
 

Presently, 41 lots exist in the abutting Red Forest Way subdivision to the north.  The 33 
additional lots (included in the Phase 1 preliminary plan and Phase 2 concept plan) 
would result in a total 74 dwelling units within Site K. 
 
According to the PDA, the City’s RSL - PUD, Residential Single-Family Low-Density 
zoning district provisions apply to the subject property.  Additionally, the southern one-
third of the site lies within the Shoreland Management District of Black Lake, a 
designated “natural environment” lake. 
 
All lots are proposed to be served by on-site wells and septic systems. 
 
Prior to the scheduling of a public hearing for the application, Section 152.021(C) of the 
North Oaks City Code (the “Subdivision Ordinance”) directs the Planning Commission to 
review the Preliminary Plan (subdivision) and accompanying submissions (the 
“Preliminary Plan application”) and decide whether the submission is complete and 
contains the information required for an application for Preliminary Plan approval found 
in the City of North Oaks’ (the City”) Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance and East 
Oaks PDA, as may be applicable. 
 
If the Planning Commission determines the Preliminary Plan application to be complete, 
it should call for a public hearing.  It is anticipated that the Planning Commission may 
schedule the public hearing at its regular October 29, 2020 meeting or a special 
meeting.  If, however, the Preliminary Plan application is deemed incomplete, the 
Planning Commission must advise the applicant what additional information is 
necessary such that it may be determined to be complete. 
 
To be noted is that a determination of completeness is not intended to consider design 
aspects of the subdivision (street and lot layouts, trail locations etc.).  Nor is a 
determination of completeness a determination of compliance or conformity with the 
terms of the PDA or its controls.  Such issues are intended to be addressed as part of 
the formal subdivision review which will follow. 
 
The Planning Commission should make its determination of completeness within 15 
business days from the date the application materials were received.  The Preliminary 
Plan application was received by the City on September 4, 2020.  Thus, the Planning 
Commission should make its determination no later than September 28, 2020 
 
Attached for reference: 
 
 Exhibit A:   Preliminary Subdivision (Plan) Submission Requirements 
 Exhibit B:   Application Materials: 
 
  B1:   Applicant Narrative 
  B2:   Project Summary 

54



 

3 
 

  B3:   East Oaks Phasing Plan 
  B4:   Existing Conditions 
  B5:   Preliminary Plat / Easement Plan 
  B6:   Preliminary Site Plan 
  B7:   Preliminary Grading Plans 
  B8:   Preliminary Erosion Control Plans 
  B9:   Preliminary Utility Plans 
  B10: Traffic Analysis 
  B11: Trail Easement Plan 
  B12: Validation of Wetland Delineation 
  B13: Soil Suitability Correspondence 
 
 
STAFF COMMENTS REGARDING COMPLETENESS OF PRELIMINARY PLAN 
APPLICATION 
 
Information Requirements.  Attached as Exhibit A is a table which lists the various 
submission requirements for Preliminary Plan (subdivision) applications.  In 
consideration of the submitted application, it is important to note that submission 
requirements for Preliminary Plan applications are found in the following documents: 
 

1. The Subdivision Ordinance (Subdivision Regulations, City Code Chapter 152 - 
previously Ord. 93) 

 
2. The Zoning Ordinance (Zoning Code, Chapter 151 - previously Ord. 94) 

 
To be noted is that submission requirements referenced in the East Oaks PDA 
documents are a direct duplication of the submission requirements provided in the 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Also, to be noted is that some submission requirements apply to sewered 
developments, typically multiple family residential and commercial projects.  In this 
regard, some of the listed submission requirements are not considered applicable to the 
Red Forest Way South subdivision and are noted as “Not Applicable/NA in Exhibit A. 
 
In review of the submission requirements listed in attached Exhibit A, all submission 
requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Application Action Deadline.  According to Minnesota Statutes, Section 462.358, 
Subd. 3b, a subdivision application “shall be preliminarily approved or disapproved 
within 120 days following delivery of an application completed in compliance with the 
municipal ordinance by the applicant to the municipality, unless an extension of the 
review period has been agreed to by the applicant. 
 
 
 

55



 

4 
 

CONCLUSION / RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission is charged with the responsibility of determining whether the 
submitted Red Forest Way South Preliminary Plan (subdivision) application is complete. 
 
In review of the submitted application materials and the applicable submission 
requirements found in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances, Staff has determined 
that required information has been provided to the City, and that the Preliminary Plan 
application is complete. 
 
If the Planning Commission deems the application to be complete, it is appropriate for 
the Commission to call for a public hearing at which the application may be formally 
considered. 
 
If, however, the Commission deems the application to be incomplete, it must advise the 
applicant of information which must be provided for it to be determined to be complete. 
 
cc: Kevin Kress, City Administrator 
 Mikeya Griffin, NOHOA Executive Director 
 Phil Belfiori, Vadnais Lake Area Water Management Organization 

Jack Gleason, Department of Natural Resources 
Mark Houge and Gary Eagles, North Oaks Company 

56



EXHIBIT A

57



EXHIBIT A

58



EXHIBIT A

59



EXHIBIT A

60



EXHIBIT B1

61



EXHIBIT B1

62



EXHIBIT B2

63



EXHIBIT B3 64



EXHIBIT B4

65



EXHIBIT B4

66



EXHIBIT B5

67



EXHIBIT B6

68



EXHIBIT B7

69



EXHIBIT B7

70



EXHIBIT B7

71



EXHIBIT B7

72



EXHIBIT B7

73



EXHIBIT B7

74



EXHIBIT B7

75



EXHIBIT B8

76



EXHIBIT B8

77



EXHIBIT B8

78



EXHIBIT B9

79



EXHIBIT B9

80



EXHIBIT B9

81



EXHIBIT B9

82



EXHIBIT B9

83



EXHIBIT B9

84



EXHIBIT B10

85



EXHIBIT B10

86



EXHIBIT B11

87



EXHIBIT B12

88



EXHIBIT B13 89



CITY OF NORTH OAKS PLANNING COMMISSION 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05 

 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING PRELIMINARY PLAN APPLICATION FOR 

SUBDIVISION OF SITE K, RED FOREST WAY PHASE 1, IS COMPLETE  

 

 

 WHEREAS, the North Oaks Company, LLC (Applicant) submitted an Application 

for Property Subdivision (Preliminary Plan Approval) including a cover letter/narrative as 

well as Sheets 1-6 and the Floor Area Worksheet on September 4, 2020 for subdivision of 

property identified as Site K, Red Forest Way, Phase 1, per the East Oaks Planned Unit 

Development Agreement (PDA); and  

 

 WHEREAS, following a preliminary staff review, Applicant was advised by email 

on September 16, 2020, that certain required information necessary for an application for 

Preliminary Plan Approval to be deemed complete was not included with the September 

4th Materials, that as a result the application as submitted was determined by staff to be 

incomplete; and  

 

 WHEREAS, additional required information and documents were received by the 

City of North Oaks on Thursday, September 17, 2020; and 

 

 WHEREAS, North Oaks City Code Section 152.021, the Planning Commission 

shall determine whether the information required by Section 152.021 (A) is complete, and, 

if complete, shall set a date and place for a public hearing on the Preliminary Plan 

Application.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF NORTH OAKS: 

 

1. The Application for Property Subdivision (Preliminary Plan) of Site K, Red Forest 

Way, Phase 1, submitted by the Applicant is hereby deemed COMPLETE as of 

September 17, 2020, the date that all information and documents required for the 

Preliminary Application approval was received by the City.  

 

2. City Staff are hereby directed to advise the Applicant of this determination of 

completeness.  

 

3. The Planning Commission hereby sets a public hearing on the Preliminary Plan 

Application at ___ on __________ in the Community Room, 100 Village Center 

Drive, North Oaks, MN and via other electronic means pursuant to Minn. Stat. Sec. 

13D.021 due to the existing health pandemic and State of Minnesota and City of 

North Oaks declarations of emergency, and directs staff to provide notice of the 

public hearing as required by state statutes and the provisions of the North Oaks 

City Code.  

90



 2 

 

 

 

Adopted the 24th day of September 2020 by a vote of _____ to ______.     

  

 

 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Mark Azman 

      Its: Chair 

91



CITY OF NORTH OAKS PLANNING COMMISSION 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06 

RESOLUTION APPROVING REVISED MEETING DATES FOR NORTH OAKS  

PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

WHEREAS, the North Oaks Planning Commission typically meets on the last 

Thursday of the month, and has previously adopted a meeting schedule for 2020 which 

scheduled included a Planning Commission meeting on Thursday, October 29th; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinances 130 and 133, the Planning Commission may,  

by resolution, fix the date of its regular meetings; and  

WHEREAS, due to the number of development applications the Planning 

Commission must review, the Planning Commission has determined that it will amend its 

meeting schedule as shown below.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF  

THE CITY OF NORTH OAKS, that the following changes be made to its regularly 

scheduled meetings in October, November, and December of 2020: 

1. The newspaper publication dates in October are the 14th and 28th. The earliest the 

Planning Commission could meet is Friday, October 23rd and Friday November 6th 

depending on publication date. The North Oaks Planning Commission hereby adds 

the following meetings: 

 

• October _____________scheduled for 7:00 p.m. on Thursday. 

• October _____________scheduled for 7:00 p.m. on Thursday. 

• October _____________scheduled for 7:00 p.m. on Thursday. 

• November _____________ scheduled for 7:00 p.m. on ________ 

• November _____________ scheduled for 7:00 p.m. on ________ 

• November _____________ scheduled for 7:00 p.m. on ________ 

• December _____________ scheduled for 7:00 p.m. on ________ 

•  

• Such meeting shall be held in the Community Meeting Room, 100 

Village Center Drive, Suite 150, North Oaks, Minnesota or by 

electronic means pursuant to Minn. Stat. §13D.021. 

 

2. No further changes are made at this time to the previously-adopted meeting 

schedule for the North Oaks Planning Commission.  

Approved the 24th day of September, 2020.  

92



By:  ________________________________ 

Mark Azman 

 Its: Chair 

93


	Planning Commission Agenda
	Item 7a.  - 7.30.2020 Planning  Commission Minutes.docx
	Item 8a. - Gate Hill Report and Exhibits (A-B13).pdf
	Item 8a. - Revised Gate Hill Resolution Final 9-18-20.pdf
	Item 8b. - North Oaks - Red Forest Way South Report and Exhibits (A-B13).pdf
	Item 8b. - Revised Red Forest Way Resolution Final 9-18-2020.pdf
	Item 8c. - Final PC Meeting Resolution 9-18-2020.pdf



